
 

CITY OF UNALASKA, ALASKA 
PLANNING COMMISSION & PLATTING BOARD 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

THURSDAY, MAY 19, 2016, 6:00 P.M. 
UNALASKA CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

AGENDA 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION & PLATTING BOARD 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL 
REVISIONS TO THE AGENDA  
APPEARANCE REQUESTS  
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
MINUTES:  Planning Commission & Platting Board, May 3, 2016 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 
1. RESOLUTION 2016-07: A RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR TWO RESIDENTIAL UNITS ON LOT 

1F and PARCEL G, AIRPORT SUBDIVISION, LOCATED ON TUNDRA DRIVE 
2. RESOLUTION 2016-08: A RESOLUTION APPROVING PRELIMINARY PLAT OF COXCOMB SUBDIVISION ADDITION NO. 1, A 

REPLAT OF LOTS 1 AND 2, COXCOMB SUBDIVISION, AND A PORTION OF UNSUBDIVIDED GOV. LOT 4, SECTION 1, T73S, 
R118W, SEWARD MERIDIAN 

3. RESOLUTION 2016-09: A RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR THREE RESIDENTIAL UNITS ON LOT 
3, BLOCK 2, ILULAQ SUBDIVISION, LOCATED AT 178/180 CHERNOFSKI DRIVE 

 
OLD BUSINESS 
No Items 
  
NEW BUSINESS 
1. RESOLUTION 2016-07: A RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR TWO RESIDENTIAL UNITS ON LOT 

1F and PARCEL G, AIRPORT SUBDIVISION, LOCATED ON TUNDRA DRIVE 
2. RESOLUTION 2016-08: A RESOLUTION APPROVING PRELIMINARY PLAT OF COXCOMB SUBDIVISION ADDITION NO. 1, A 

REPLAT OF LOTS 1 AND 2, COXCOMB SUBDIVISION, AND A PORTION OF UNSUBDIVIDED GOV. LOT 4, SECTION 1, T73S, 
R118W, SEWARD MERIDIAN 

3. RESOLUTION 2016-09: A RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR THREE RESIDENTIAL UNITS ON LOT 
3, BLOCK 2, ILULAQ SUBDIVISION, LOCATED AT 178/180 CHERNOFSKI DRIVE 

 
WORKSESSION 
No Items 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL 
REVISIONS TO THE AGENDA 
MINUTES: Historic Preservation Commission, March 15, 2016 
 
WORKSESSION 

1. Update: Unalaska Historic Sites & Resources Inventory; Discussion with consultant and questions/comments from 
Commissioners and public 

 
ADJOURNMENT 



Principles of the Unalaska Planning Commission 

1. The Position: In any community, the position of Planning Commissioner is a highly respected and

honored one.

2. The Job: The job of Planning Commissioner is to serve the public, as representatives of the City

Council and to the best of their ability, in ensuring sound planning and growth management in

Unalaska.  All decisions of the Planning Commission should be based on sound planning

principles and practices, and not on the personal opinion of individual Planning Commissioners.

Once the Planning Commission makes a recommendation to the City Council, the job of the

Planning Commissioners and Planning Commission is over, in terms of that particular action.

3. Integrity: Planning Commissioners are appointed by City Council.  The actions, behavior, and

comportment of each Planning Commissioner reflect not only on that Planning Commissioner’s

integrity – but also on the integrity of the City Council and of the entire City government.

4. Collaboration: An individual Planning Commissioner is not a “lone wolf,” but is part of a collective

body.  As such, each Planning Commissioner is expected to act in a collaborative manner with

his and her fellow Planning Commissioners.

5. Respect Each Other: While it is understandable to sometimes disagree with your fellow Planning

Commissioners on issues brought before the body, and appropriate to publically vocalize that

disagreement during Planning Commission meetings, a Planning Commissioner should always

respect the opinion of their fellow Commissioners and treat each other with respect.

6. Majority Rules: It is important to remember that, at the end of the day, the majority rules.  So,

after each action is brought before the body, discussed, and voted upon, Planning

Commissioners must accept and respect the rule of the majority – even if the ruling was counter

to an individual Commissioner’s position.

7. Respect Staff: A Planning Commissioner should respect the opinion of City Planning Staff,

whether the Planning Commissioner agrees with staff or not. Planning Staff Members are

professionals who are employed to serve not only the Planning Commission and general public,

but the City Council.

8. The Las Vegas Rule: What comes before the Planning Commission must stay before the

Planning Commission.  This means there can be no outside negotiating with petitioners or with

the public regarding applications brought before the Commission.  And, all discussions – pro or

con – concerning a petition before the Planning Commission, must take place solely within

Planning Commission meetings.

9. Respect Applicants and Public: Each Planning Commissioner must always show professionalism

and respect for applicants and the general public – regardless of the position held by that

Planning Commissioner or by the Planning Commission.

10. Upholding the Principles: Any member of the Planning Commission who finds that he or she

cannot uphold and abide by the above principles should resign from the Commission.



PROCEDURES FOR THE CHAIR 

Approval of Minutes 

The Chair states: “The minutes were included in the packet. Are there any corrections to the minutes?” [pause to wait 

for commissioners to object]. “Hearing none, if there are no objections, the minutes are approved as printed.” 

OR 

If there are objects to the minutes, then… 

1. Ask for a motion to approve the minutes as printed. And a second. 

2. Facilitate Commission discussion. 

3. Amendments will need a motion and a second. 

4. When there is no more discussion, call for a vote on any amendments. 

5. Continue discussion until there is none further, then call for a vote on the minutes as amended. 

Public Hearings 

1. Open the public hearing. 

2. Notify the public that they may raise their hand and speak from their seats. 

3. Read the title of the first item. 

4. Ask if any member of the public wishes to speak to the item. They may do so by raising their hand. 

5. When discussion has ended, read the title of the second item. 

6. Again ask for public discussion. 

7. Continue until all items on the public hearing are complete. 

8. NOTE: No commissioners or staff should give any input during the public hearing. 

Resolutions under new business or old business 

1. Read the title of the first resolution. 

2. Ask for declaration of ex parte communications and conflicts of interest from commissioners. 

3. Any question of whether a conflict of interest exists will be settled by a majority vote of the Commission. 

Members with a conflict will be asked to sit in the audience during this discussion/vote. 

4. Ask for staff presentation. 

5. Ask for questions from Commissioners of staff. 

6. Ask for a presentation from the applicant. 

7. Ask for questions from Commissioners of the applicant. 

8. Ask for a motion to approve the resolution. And a second. 

9. Facilitate commission discussion. 

10. If any members of the public have signed up to speak on the topic, they will be given a chance to speak. The 

chair must set a time limit (such as 2 minutes) to each public comment. Time limits can be objected by 

commissioners and subsequently put to a vote if necessary. 

11. Following public testimony, continue commission discussion until there is nothing further. 

12. NOTE: Each member of the public only gets one chance to speak, but anyone who signs up with staff before the 

commission votes shall be given their one chance to speak before the vote occurs. 

13. Call for a vote. 

14. Repeat for each resolution on the agenda. 



 

CITY OF UNALASKA, ALASKA 
PLANNING COMMISSION & PLATTING BOARD 

RESCHEDULED MEETING 
FROM THURSDAY, APRIL 21, 2016, TO TUESDAY, MAY 03, 2016, 6:00 P.M. 

UNALASKA CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
AGENDA 

 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER: Chair Jessica Earnshaw called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM.  
 
ROLL CALL 
Physically Present   Present by Telephone        
Billie Jo Gehring    Doanh Tran 
Jessica Earnshaw       
Vicki Williams        
       
Staff Present 
Anthony Grande, Planning Director 
Thomas Roufos, Associate Planner  
 
REVISIONS TO THE AGENDA: None  
 
APPEARANCE REQUESTS: None 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS: Mr. Grande introduced new Associate Planner, Thomas Roufos. 
Mr. Grande stated that commissioner Tran is attending meeting via telephone & reviewed rules in detail for 
attending meeting by telephone for Planning Commissioners. 
Mr. Grande announced that the next Historic Preservation Commission Meeting will be on Thursday, May 19, 2016 
at the regular scheduled meeting time.   
 
MINUTES:  Planning Commission & Platting Board, March 17, 2016. Chair Earnshaw asked if there is any correction 
to the minutes. Hearing none, Chair Earnshaw declared the minutes from March 17, 2016 approved without 
objection.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING 
1. RESOLUTION 2016-06: A RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR TWELVE RESIDENTIAL 

UNITS ON LOT 2, MARINEWAYS SUBDIVISION, LOCATED AT 68 GILMAN ROAD 
 
Chair Earnshaw asked if any member of the public would like to testify. Hearing none, Chair Earnshaw closed the 
public hearing. 
 
OLD BUSINESS   
No Items  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. RESOLUTION 2016-06: A RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR TWELVE RESIDENTIAL 

UNITS ON LOT 2, MARINEWAYS SUBDIVISION, LOCATED AT 68 GILMAN ROAD 
 
Chair Earnshaw asked if there any conflict of interest by commissioners. Hearing None, Chair Earnshaw called for 
staff presentation. Mr. Grande explained that this conditional use permit is to renovate the existing bunkhouse 



into a 12 unit residential building. It is a change of use of the property from a bunkhouse building to a permanent 
apartment building and the property is zoned general commercial which requires conditional use permit.  
 
Mr. Grande stated that the general over view of the area has industrial nature; also there is other high density 
residential building in the area. So, there is no high density issue. Mr. Grande stated that there are no conflicts in 
terms of land use because it is a similar land use from across the street and there is no negative impact from 
industrial developments. The applicant also has a 24 space parking plane. The application meets all the 
requirement and Mr. Grande recommends approval of Resolution 2016-06. 
 
Chair Earnshaw asked the Commissioners if they had any questions for Staff. Hearing none, Chair Earnshaw asked 
if the public would like to testify. Mr. Roger Deffendall, member of public stated that the project site has been 
changed than shone in the photo. Mr. Grande responded that the site plan was submitted by the applicant and the 
aerial view is form 2010 so it could be different. Chair Earnshaw asked if there is any further public testimony, 
Hearing none.      
 
Chair Earnshaw asked for a motion to approve Resolution 2016-06. Commissioner Gehring made a motion to adopt 
and approve Resolution 2016-06: A Resolution Approving a Conditional Use Permit for Twelve Residential Units on 
Lot 2, Marineways Subdivision, Located at 68 Gilman Road. Commissioner Tran seconded.  
 
Chair Earnshaw call for a vote to approve the Resolution 2016-06. The vote was unanimous (4-0), and the 
Resolution 2016-06 was approved.  
 
2. NOTICE OF PLANNING DETERMINATION DATED 3-16-2016: THE MINIMUM FRONT YARD REQUIREMENT IS 

REDUCED FROM 10 FEET TO 9 FEET AT 211 KASHEGA DRIVE 
 
Mr. Grande explained that Item no. 2) is a Planning Determination and Item no. 3) is an Abbreviate Plat.    
These are two items where Planning Department is able to make administrative decision and should be reported 
to the Planning Commissioners. 
 
Mr. Grande stated that for Planning Determination; the code says that the department is able to make the 
administrative decision for variances of 10% or less. So, the department made a decision to allow a front yard 
requirement to reduce from 10 feet to 9 feet at 211 Kashega Drive.     
 
Commissioner Ghering asked if this is going to be more common request from the applicants because of the 6,000 
sq.ft. requirement and the applicant trying to meet the setback. Mr. Grande responded that it’s not very common 
but it does happen sometimes. 
 
3. NOTICE OF PLATTING AUTHORITY APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 2016-03 A RESOLUTION APPROVING 

PRELIMINARY PLAT OF GUITARD SUBDIVISION, A REPLAT OF LOT 9, US SURVEY 5185, LOCATED AT 657-669 
STEWARD ROAD 

 
Mr. Grande explained that it’s a Preliminary Plat of Guitard Subdivision. The applicant reapplied after the new 
ordinance has been passed with changing the utility requirement. So, the Planning Department approved it with 
amended condition as an Abbreviate Plat. Now the conditions are changed so that the utility service lines will not 
need to be added in the new lot. Mr. Grande also, stated that this plat is a good example of new ordnance.  
 
Chair Earnshaw asked the Commissioners if they had any further questions for the staff, Hearing none.  
 
WORKSESSION 
No Items 
 
ADJOURNMENT: Chair Earnshaw adjourned the meeting at 6:19 PM.  
 



PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 19
th

 DAY OF MAY, 2016 BY THE CTY OF UNALASKA, ALASKA PLANNING COMMISSION. 
 
 
 
_________________________________    ____________________________ 
Jessica Earnshaw        Date 
Commission Chair 
 
 
 
________________________________    ____________________________ 
Anthony Grande, AICP       Date 
Secretary of the Commission 
 
 
Prepared by Ruchi Patel and Anthony Grande, Planning Department 
 



MB Contractor Conditional Use Permit (Res. 2016-07)            05.07.2016  
 

1 
 

City of Unalaska, Alaska 

Planning Commission/Platting Board 

Staff Report 
  

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR TWO RESIDENTIAL 

UNITS ON LOT 1F AND PARCEL G, AIRPORT SUBDIVISION, LOCATED AT 173/175 

TUNDRA DRIVE 
 

Project Information 

Land Owner State of Alaska Department of Transportation 

Applicant Micah Bonin, General Contractor 

Location  Lot 1F and Parcel G, Airport Subdivision, located on Tundra Drive 

Property Identification 00-01-100 

Application Type Conditional Use Permit  

Project Description Relocating residential trailers from inside the security fence to outside at Tom 

Madsen Airport. 

Zoning  Public/Quasi-Public 

Exhibits Draft Resolution 2016-07, Conditional Use Permit Application and Supplemental 

Materials, Location Map 

Staff Recommendation Approval of Resolution 2016-07 

 
PLAN GUIDANCE 

1. Goal #9 of the Unalaska Housing Plan is to ensure that zoning and all regulatory and permit processes support 

the redevelopment of in-fill lots and new subdivisions for new housing development. 

2. Goal #4 of the Unalaska Housing Plan is to preserve and improve the condition and stability of existing 

housing throughout the city. 

3. The Unalaska Land Use Plan: 2015 does not address the airport parcel. 

 

CODE REQUIREMENTS 
1. According to UCO §8.12.120(A), this district is intended to provide for public and quasi-public educational, 

recreational, health, utility, administrative, and institutional land uses and structures, including airports. 

2. According to UCO §8.12.120(D)(8), this district allows for all other uses not listed may be permitted as 

conditional uses subject to the review and approval of the Planning Commission per the provisions of § 

8.12.200 contained herein. 

3. UCO §8.12.200(C) states that at a public hearing, the Planning Commission is to determine that the 

conditional use meets the following three tests and may apply site or development conditions, pursuant to 

UCO §8.12.200(D)(2), in order to ensure that the three tests are met. 

1. Furthers the goals and objectives of the Comprehensive Development Plan; and 

2. Will be compatible with existing and planned land uses in the surrounding neighborhood and with the 

intent of its use district; and 

3. Will not have a permanent negative impact substantially greater than anticipated from permitted 

development within the district. 

 

BACKGROUND  

1. There currently exists two trailers inside the security fence of the airport that house the families of some of the 

employees of the airport. 

2. The Federal Aviation Administration has requested the removal of these trailers for security and safety 

reasons. 

3. This application simply moves the trailers 150 feet uphill on the same property, with all their existing utilities. 

4. The new access for the trailers will be on Tundra Drive. Tundra Drive does not have a particular 

neighborhood character that would be diminished by the location of two residential homes. The airport itself 



MB Contractor Conditional Use Permit (Res. 2016-07)            05.07.2016  
 

2 
 

will also not be negatively impacted by these homes, which have not caused any issues having been in the 

same vicinity already. 

FINDINGS 
The purpose of the conditional use permit is to allow for a specific use to be examined on a case-by-case basis 

with consideration to the uniqueness of the situation and public testimony. The Planning Commission is to 

approve the request when it finds that the three-part test is satisfied. Staff finds that all three tests are met as 

follows. 

1. The proposed development associated with this conditional use application furthers the objectives of the 

Comprehensive Plan by maintaining the amount of available housing in the City.  

2. The proposed development associated with this conditional use application is compatible with the 

surrounding land uses and neighborhood character, as these trailers are being relocated on the same property. 

3. This conditional use application will not have any substantial negative impact on the community, greater than 

anticipated from permitted developments in the Public/Quasi-Public District.  

 

RECOMMENDATION 
In accordance with the standards outlined in Unalaska City Code of Ordinances Chapter 8.12 (Zoning), the City 

of Unalaska Department of Planning, in concert with the City’s Developmental Review team, recommends that 

the Planning Commission approve the conditional use request as outlined in Resolution 2016-07. 

 



MB Contractors Conditional Use Permit (Res. 2016-07)  5.19.2016 

City of Unalaska, Alaska 
Planning Commission & Platting Board 

Resolution 2016-07 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR TWO 
RESIDENTIAL UNITS ON LOT 1F AND PARCEL G, AIRPORT SUBDIVISION, 

LOCATED AT 173/175 TUNDRA DRIVE 
 

WHEREAS, UCO §8.12.200 sets forth the procedures for taking action on a conditional use 
application; and 
 
WHEREAS, the applicant, Micah Bonin, has been authorized by the State of Alaska Department 
of Transportation, the owner of Lot 1F and Parcel G, Unalaska Airport Subdivision, Aleutian 
Islands Recording District (00-01-100); and 
 
WHEREAS, the property is zoned Public/Quasi-Public; and 
 
WHEREAS, UCO §8.12.120(D)(8) all uses may be permitted as conditional uses upon approval 
of the Planning Commission; and 
 
WHEREAS, the applicant has submitted a conditional use permit application to move two 
existing residential trailers in an area zoned Public/Quasi-Public; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Unalaska Departments of Planning, Public Works, Public Utilities and 
Public Safety have reviewed the request; and 
 
WHEREAS, the housing provided by this request further the goals and objectives of the 
Comprehensive Plan by providing a safe area for housing outside the airport security fence; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Unalaska Planning Commission held a public hearing on May 19, 2016 
to consider this request and to hear testimony of the public, and 
 
WHEREAS, notices of the public hearing were posted and mailed; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission reviewed the application and finds that this conditional 
use request satisfies the three part test set forth in UCO §8.12.200(C): 

1. Furthers the goals and objectives of the Comprehensive Plan; 
2. Will be compatible with existing and planned land uses in the surrounding neighborhood 

and with the intent of its use district; and 
3. Will not have a permanent negative impact substantially greater than anticipated from 

permitted development within the district. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Planning Commission approves a conditional use 
permit to move two residential trailers on Lot 1F and Parcel G, Unalaska Airport Subdivision, at 
173/175 Tundra Drive. 
 
This resolution approves the conditional use only as it applies to the plans presented by the 
applicant in the application process, and becomes effective once the Planning Department issues 

1 
 



MB Contractors Conditional Use Permit (Res. 2016-07)  5.19.2016 

the conditional use permit. Issuance of the conditional use permit is contingent upon 1) that there 
are no appeals within ten (10) working days from the decision date, as outlined in UCO 
§8.12.200(E); and 2) that all conditions listed above are satisfied by the applicant. Following its 
issuance, the applicant has the responsibility to maintain compliance with all conditions, and for 
any failure to abide by these conditions, the Planning Department may revoke the conditional use 
permit and enforce abatement proceedings on the property as a public nuisance, according to 
UCO §8.12.220(F), 8.12.220(H), and Chapter 11.12. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 19th DAY OF MAY, 2016 BY THE PLANNING 
COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF UNALASKA, ALASKA. 
 
 
___________________________  __________________________ 
Jessica Earnshaw      Anthony Grande, AICP 
Commission Chair       Secretary of the Commission  
 

2 
 









299 ft

rpatel
Callout
Trailer A

rpatel
Callout
Trailer B 



Preliminary Plat of Coxcomb Subdivision Add. 1 (Res. 2016-08)  5.19.2016 
 

City of Unalaska, Alaska 
Planning Commission/Platting Board 

Staff Report 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING PRELIMINARY PLAT OF COXCOMB SUBDIVISION 
ADDITION NO. 1, A REPLAT OF LOTS 1 AND 2, COXCOMB SUBDIVISION, AND A 
PORTION OF UNSUBDIVIDED GOV. LOT 4, SECTION 1, T73S, R118W, SEWARD 

MERIDIAN 
 

Project Information 
Land Owner City of Unalaska, Onalashka Corporation (OC) 
Applicant City of Unalaska 
Location  1181 Summer Bay Rd 
Property Identification  03-03-002; 03-03-001; 03-04-005 
Application Type Preliminary Plat 
Project Description The proposal is to re-direct the right of way from Landfill Rd to the current 

route traveled along the shore, across OC property. 
Zoning Marine Dependent Industrial, Public/Quasi-Public 
Exhibits Preliminary Plat Coxcomb Subdivision 
Staff Recommendation Approval with Conditions as identified in Resolution 2016-08 
 
BACKGROUND 
The City of Unalaska has applied to reroute the existing right of way for Summer Bay Road to match the current 
travelway. This would not change the physical road, but only make the official property boundary lines match what 
is currently in place. This would vacate the entire right of way that passes through the City landfill. It would also 
acquire a section of Ounalashka Corporation (OC) property where the road currently exists. 
 
The City and OC have previously agreed to this transfer of property to realign the right-of-way for Summer Bay 
Road. The agreement was recorded in 2002 as document number 2002-000359-0 in the Aleutian Islands Recording 
District. OC will be required to sign the plat as one of the property owners of the involved land, but the plat is in 
accordance with an existing agreement. 
  
This plat must be approved by the Planning Commission because it involves the vacation/dedication of a Public 
Right of Way. According to UCO 8.08.020(J), the vacation of right-of-way is to be recommended to the City 
Council by the Platting Board. In this instance the Planning Commission will be acting in their capacity as the 
Platting Board. Following approval, the plat will be brought to the City Council for approval. 
 
The plat is not an approval of development or construction but simply approves the redirection of the Right of Way 
to meet current conditions. The Platting Board is to verify that the plat conforms to UCO 8.08.090 Subdivision 
Design Standards. Staff finds that the plat does conform. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
In accordance with the standards outlined in Unalaska City Code of Ordinances Chapter 8.08 (Platting and 
Subdivision), the City of Unalaska Department of Planning, in concert with the Development Review Team, 
recommends approval of the preliminary plat of Coxcomb Subdivision Addition 1, with associated conditions 
outlined in draft Resolution 2016-08. 

1 



Preliminary Plat of Coxcomb Subdivision Add. 1 (Res. 2016-08)  5.19.2016 

 

 1 

City of Unalaska, Alaska 

Platting Authority 

Resolution 2016-08 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING PRELIMINARY PLAT OF COXCOMB SUBDIVISION 
ADDITION NO. 1, A REPLAT OF LOTS 1 AND 2, COXCOMB SUBDIVISION, AND A 
PORTION OF UNSUBDIVIDED GOV. LOT 4, SECTION 1, T73S, R118W, SEWARD 

MERIDIAN 
 
WHEREAS, UCO 8.08 sets forth the procedures and requirements for the subdivision and platting of 
land and provides that the Platting Board shall act as the Platting Authority; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Ounalashka Corporation and City of Unalaska are the owners of  lots 1 and 2, coxcomb 
subdivision, and a portion of unsubdivided Gov. Lot 4, Section 1, T73S, R118W, Seward meridian, 
Aleutian Islands Recording District (03-03-002; 03-03-001; 03-04-005); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Unalaska has submitted a plat application to re-direct the right of way and vacate 
the existing right-of-way; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Unalaska Departments of Planning, Public Works, Public Utilities, and Public 
Safety staff have reviewed the proposed plat and have requested revisions as described below; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Unalaska Platting Authority held a public hearing on May 19, 2016 to consider 
this platting action and to hear testimony of the public; 
 
WHEREAS, notices were posted and mailed in accordance with Title 8, UCO §8.08.020(F); and 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Platting Board approves the preliminary plat of 
Coxcomb Subdivision Addition 1 with the following conditions of approval in accordance with the 
standards outlined in Unalaska Code of Ordinances Chapter 8.08 (Platting and Subdivision): 
 
1. A closure report shall be submitted. 

2. Electronic versions of the final plat shall be provided to the Department of Planning at the time of 

mylar plat submittal, allowing for incorporation into the City’s CADD and GIS programs. 

 
Upon the correction of the aforementioned deficiencies, the applicant shall submit a corrected preliminary 
plat to the Department of Planning for review and concurrence before proceeding to final plat. This 
conditional plat approval becomes effective if there are no appeals within ten (10) working days after the 
Planning Commission action and shall remain in effect for one year. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 19

th
 DAY OF MAY, 2016 BY THE PLATTING AUTHORITY OF 

THE CITY OF UNALASKA, ALASKA. 
 
 
______________________      __________________________ 
Jessica Earnshaw       Anthony Grande, AICP 
Commission Chair       Secretary of the Commission 

 



B
A

S
IS

 O
F

 B
E

A
R

IN
G

(
N
3
1
°
5
9
'3
2
"
E
 2
6
3
9
.7
5
')
 2
6
3
9
.8
5
' 
M

E
A
S
U
R
E
D

THIS

SURVEY

PRELIMINARY



THIS

SURVEY

PRELIMINARY



 Dinh Conditional Use Permit (Res. 2016-09)                5.19.2016 
 

1 
 

City of Unalaska, Alaska 

Planning Commission/Platting Board 

Staff Report 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR THREE 

RESIDENTIAL UNITS ON LOT 3, BLOCK 2, ILULAQ SUBDIVISION, LOCATED AT 178/180 

CHERNOFSKI DRIVE 
 

Project Information 

Land Owner Tuyen Dinh 

Applicant Tuyen Dinh 

Location  178/180 Chernofski Drive 

Property Identification 04-03-498 

Application Type Conditional Use Permit  

Project Description This project will place a new three-unit residential structure on a vacant lot. 

Zoning  Single-Family/Duplex Residential 

Exhibits Draft Resolution 2016-09, Conditional Use Permit Application and Supplemental 

Materials, Location Map 

Staff Recommendation Approval of Resolution 2016-09 with associated conditions 

 
PLAN GUIDANCE 

1. Housing was identified as a community need in the 2009 Community Visions for the Future: Unalaska 2010-

2020 visioning document as part of the Comprehensive Planning process. 

2. Goal #9 of the Unalaska Housing Plan is to ensure that zoning and all regulatory and permit processes support 

the redevelopment of in-fill lots and new subdivisions for new housing development. 

3. The Unalaska Land Use Plan: 2015 makes recommendations for this property in the “Standard Oil Hill” 

Subarea of the plan. The plan calls for an increase in multi-family residential uses in this subarea in the future 

recommendations table. The locations specific recommendations section also mentions that areas not adjacent 

to Biorka Drive, along Chernofski Drive “are best suited for Single-Family/Duplex Residential.” 

 

CODE REQUIREMENTS 
1. According to UCO §8.12.040(A), The Single-Family/Duplex Residential District is intended to stabilize and 

protect the one- and two- family dwelling residential character of the district and to promote and encourage a 

safe and suitable environment for family life. 

2. According to UCO §8.12.040(D)(7), any use may be allowed as a conditional use by approval of the Planning 

Commission. 

3. UCO §8.12.200(C) states that at a public hearing, the Planning Commission is to determine that the 

conditional use meets the following three tests and may apply site or development conditions, pursuant to 

UCO §8.12.200(D)(2), in order to ensure that the three tests are met. 

1. Furthers the goals and objectives of the Comprehensive Development Plan; and 

2. Will be compatible with existing and planned land uses in the surrounding neighborhood and with the 

intent of its use district; and 

3. Will not have a permanent negative impact substantially greater than anticipated from permitted 

development within the district. 

 

BACKGROUND  

1. The property at 178/180 Chernofski recently became vacant due to a fire situation. The previous building was 

known to be a triplex. 

2. The applicant/property owner has proposed to replace the structure with a triplex-style modular apartment 

building. This structure would have 3 townhouse units, side by side. The stated purpose is to continue the 

previous use: housing the family and some employees of the family business located offsite. 



 Dinh Conditional Use Permit (Res. 2016-09)                5.19.2016 
 

2 
 

3. The surrounding area has a character that is largely similar to the proposed building. While the zoning and 

land use plan call for duplex housing, most of the neighboring properties are known to have three or four 

units, which predate the zoning code. In many respects, this proposal would not create a building that was 

incompatible with the surrounding properties. 

FINDINGS 
The purpose of the conditional use permit is to allow for a specific use to be examined on a case-by-case basis 

with consideration to the uniqueness of the situation and public testimony. The Planning Commission is to 

approve the request when it finds that the three-part test is satisfied. Staff finds that all three tests are met as 

follows. 

1. The proposed development associated with this conditional use application furthers the objectives of the 

Comprehensive Plan by providing additional housing for the community. It also furthers the goals of the Land 

Use Plan by allowing for an increase in multi-family housing in the standard oil hill subarea. 

2. The proposed development associated with this conditional use application is compatible with the 

surrounding land uses and neighborhood character, which has several apparent multi-family structures, and is 

a higher-density area of the community. 

3. The proposed conditional use will not have a permanent negative impact substantially greater than anticipated 

from duplex development. The parking requirement has been added to the resolution to ensure that the 

parking will not burden the neighborhood.  

 

RECOMMENDATION 
In accordance with the standards outlined in Unalaska City Code of Ordinances Chapter 8.12 (Zoning), the City 

of Unalaska Department of Planning, in concert with the City’s Developmental Review team, recommends that 

the Planning Commission approve the conditional use request with the associated condition of approval identified 

in Resolution 2016-09. 

 



Dinh Conditional Use Permit (Res. 2016-09)  5.19.2016 
 

1 

 

City of Unalaska, Alaska 

Planning Commission & Platting Board 

Resolution 2016-09 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR THREE RESIDENTIAL 

UNITS ON LOT 3, BLOCK 2, ILULAQ SUBDIVISION, LOCATED AT 178/180 CHERNOFSKI 

DRIVE 

 
WHEREAS, UCO §8.12.200 sets forth the procedures for taking action on a conditional use application; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the applicant, Tuyen Dinh, is the owner of Lot 3, Block 2, Ilulaq Subdivision, Aleutian 
Islands Recording District (04-03-498); and 
 

WHEREAS, the property is zoned Single-Family/Duplex Residential; and 

 

WHEREAS, UCO §8.12.040(B)(1) states that up to two units are permitted on a lot in the Single-

Family/Duplex Residential district, and §8.12.040(D)(7) all uses may be permitted as conditional uses 

upon approval of the Planning Commission; and 

 

WHEREAS, the applicant has submitted a conditional use permit application to allow three residential 

units for a triplex; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Unalaska Departments of Planning, Public Works, Public Utilities and Public 
Safety have reviewed the request; and 
 
WHEREAS, the additional housing provided by this request further the goals and objectives of the 
Comprehensive Plan by providing more land area for housing; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Unalaska Planning Commission held a public hearing on May 19, 2016 to 
consider this request and to hear testimony of the public, and 
 
WHEREAS, notices of the public hearing were posted and mailed; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission reviewed the application and finds that this conditional use 

request satisfies the three part test set forth in UCO §8.12.200(C): 

1. Furthers the goals and objectives of the Comprehensive Plan; 

2. Will be compatible with existing and planned land uses in the surrounding neighborhood and with 

the intent of its use district; and 

3. Will not have a permanent negative impact substantially greater than anticipated from permitted 

development within the district. 

 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Planning Commission approves a conditional use permit 

for three residential units for a triplex on Lot 3, Block 2, Ilulaq Subdivision, at 178/180 Chernofski Drive 

with the following conditions of approval: 

1. This approval does not authorize the property owner to modify the building in the future to include 

any more than three dwelling units, as defined in UCO 8.06.020(A)(57).  



Dinh Conditional Use Permit (Res. 2016-09)  5.19.2016 
 

2 

 

2. The applicant is required to obtain a building permit from the Department of Public Works and 

must adhere to all fire code requirements prior to construction. 

3. The electric service must have one meter for each dwelling unit and one meter for any common 

spaces, such as a boiler room. 

4. The applicant’s building permit will show a revised site plan with six parking spaces that are all 

accessible simultaneously. 

 

This resolution approves the conditional use only as it applies to the plans presented by the applicant in 

the application process, and becomes effective once the Planning Department issues the conditional use 

permit. Issuance of the conditional use permit is contingent upon 1) that there are no appeals within ten 

(10) working days from the decision date, as outlined in UCO §8.12.200(E); and 2) that all conditions 

listed above are satisfied by the applicant. Following its issuance, the applicant has the responsibility to 

maintain compliance with all conditions, and for any failure to abide by these conditions, the Planning 

Department may revoke the conditional use permit and enforce abatement proceedings on the property as 

a public nuisance, according to UCO §8.12.220(F), 8.12.220(H), and Chapter 11.12. 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 19

th
 DAY OF MAY, 2016 BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

OF THE CITY OF UNALASKA, ALASKA. 

 

 

 

 

 

___________________________  __________________________ 

Jessica Earnshaw       Anthony Grande, AICP 

Commission Chair       Secretary of the Commission  









189 ft

rpatel
Callout
178-180 Chernofski Dr.














